

Committee and Date

Health and Wellbeing Board

12 November 2020

MINUTES OF THE HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD MEETING HELD ON 10 SEPTEMBER 2020 9.45 AM - 12.10 PM

Responsible Officer: Michelle Dulson

Email: michelle.dulson@shropshire.gov.uk Tel: 01743 257719

Present

Dean Carroll – PFH ASC, Housing & Climate Change Rachel Robinson - Director of Public Health Mr David Evans – Accountable Officer Dr Julian Povey – Clinical Chair (Co-Chair) Lynn Cawley – Shropshire Healthwatch Jackie Jeffrey – VCSA Jill Robinson – Shropshire, Telford & Wrekin STP Laura Fisher – Housing Services Manager Tanya Miles - Assistant Director Social Care & Health Maggie Bayley, Interim Chief Nurse, SaTH

Also in attendance:

Val Cross, Penny Bason, Ros Preen. Emily Fay, Stacey Keegan, Lisa Cliffe, Sarah Hollinshead-Bland

81 Apologies for Absence and Substitutions

The following apologies were reported to the meeting by the Chair

Lee Chapman, PFH Organisational Transformation and Digital Infrastructure (Co-Chair), Shropshire Council

Mark Brandreth, CEO, Robert Jones & Agnes Hunt Orthopedic Hospital NHS Foundation Trust

Karen Bradshaw, Director of Children's Services, Shropshire Council

Andy Begley, Director Adult Services, Public Health & Housing and Chief Executive, Shropshire Council

Dr Julie Davies, Director of Performance and Delivery, Shropshire CCG

Megan Nurse, Non-Executive Director MPFT

David Stout, Chief Executive, Shropshire Community Health Trust

Ed Potter, PFH Children's Services

Louise Barnett, Chief Executive, SaTH

The following substitutions were also notified:

Maggie Bayley substituted for Louise Barnett. Tanya Miles substituted for Andy Begley

82 **Disclosable Pecuniary Interests**

Members were reminded that they must not participate in the discussion or voting on any matter in which they had a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest and should leave the room prior to the commencement of the debate.

83 Minutes of the last meeting

RESOLVED

That the minutes of the meeting held on 9 July 2020 be approved as a correct record.

84 Public Question Time

Questions submitted by Ms Diane Peacock, in relation to the impact of Covid-19 on care home residents, had been circulated to Members.

A copy of the questions and responses provided are attached to the signed Minutes and available on this Committee's pages on the Council's web site.

85 System update

STP Update

Jill Robinson, Shropshire, Telford & Wrekin STP gave a presentation – copy attached to the signed Minutes – which covered the following areas:

- Covid-19 Key Quality and Safety Risks
- High Level System Improvement Plan
- System Priorities
- System Restore and Recovery Performance
- Phase 3 Planning
- System Finances
- ICS Development

Maggie Bayley, the outgoing Interim Chief Nurse at SaTH (substitute for Louise Barnett, CE SaTH) clarified that the CQC visit had taken place on the 9 and 10 June not July. She informed the meeting that the Trust has had an Improvement Plan in place in relation to CQC actions that have been implemented within the organisation and currently they had implemented, from May, 74% of those actions to date. She confirmed that SaTH were looking forward to working collaboratively with UHB as part of the Quality Improvement Alliance.

Lynn Cawley, Chief Officer for Healthwatch Shropshire commented that it would be really helpful for the STP Update to explain all of the acronyms used within in it for the benefit of the public. It was confirmed that a list of acronyms would be attached to future STP Updates.

RESOLVED:

To note the STP update provided through the presentation.

Shropshire Care Closer to Home

Lisa Cliffe, Shropshire CCG gave a presentation – copy attached to the signed Minutes - which covered the following areas:

- Where we were
- What happened?
- Where are we now?
- NHS England and Improvement Work Programmes and Priorities for Restoration
- Next steps

The Chief Officer, Healthwatch Shropshire queried how members of the public could find out more information about the programme and their eligibility to get involved. It was explained that as part of the previous programme they had done extensive communication and it was on the website of the CCG. They were now working to refresh those pages to ensure that that there were mechanisms available for people to come forward however that detail was not yet available.

The Chair felt that it would be good for the Health and Wellbeing Board to have an update as things develop in the next few months.

Finally, Lisa thanked the teams and the partnership working from across the system for what they had achieved prior to covid and the extensive learning as part of covid that really would benefit them going forward and confirmed she would be happy to come back and update that position to the Board in the future.

RESOLVED:

To note the Shropshire Care Closer to Home update provided through the presentation.

Better Care Fund

The report of the STP Programme Manager and Communities Lead was received—copy attached to the signed Minutes – which provided an update on the performance of the Better Care Fund (BCF) for quarter 4 of 2019/20, an update for 2020/21 progress, including an amendment to the BCF Section 75 Agreement, adjustments made to support people through the Covid 19 pandemic, the financial proposal for 2020/21, and provided a brief summary of the national BCF support offer.

Penny Bason, the STP Programme Manager and Communities Lead along with Tanya Miles, Assistant Director Social Care and Health presented this report and took Members through some key points.

The Assistant Director Social Care and Health highlighted their good track record in discharging patients from hospital and reported that they had one of the lowest delayed transfers of care in the Country pre-covid. The new integrated hub model meant what the team had achieved was quite staggering, in that they were now discharging a ward full of complex patients per day. In light of the potential bed gap issue that many systems would be facing going into the winter, the system was in a

really good, strong position. She wished publicly to say a huge thank you to the integrated hub team that had worked incredibly well in the last few months.

The Chief Officer, Healthwatch Shropshire informed the Board of a discharge survey that Healthwatch England were about to launch to get feedback from patients and families that had gone through the integrated discharge model over the last few months. The survey would be hosted on the Healthwatch Shropshire website but comments were being sought from residents of Telford & Wrekin also.

The STP Programme Manager and Communities Lead drew attention to the other parts of the system that the BCF supported and how well they all adjusted to continue to offer services to people at a really difficult time and to support people in different ways working across the voluntary sector. Jackie Jeffrey, Chief Officer, Citizens Advice Shropshire, who was the Voluntary Sector Assembly representative on the Board queried whether the changes that the voluntary sector had made had been captured and fed into the BCF reporting. In response, the STP Programme Manager and Communities Lead explained that a survey had been undertaken through the Rural Community Council and although the results had not yet been analysed and worked through, that this was one way in which feedback could be provided at a national level. She confirmed that the next quarterly reporting of the BCF would cover the timeframe of Covid and would provide an opportunity to demonstrate good practice, provide case studies etc. She requested that if anyone had any other thoughts about how this could be reported nationally, to submit them to her.

RESOLVED:

That the HWBB endorses the BCF performance template and metrics, and Schedule 1 addendum to the Section 75 Partnership Agreement.

86 Health Care, Social Care and Well-being services during the Covid-19 Pandemic - Healthwatch survey responses

Lynn Cawley, Chief Officer, Healthwatch Shropshire gave a presentation – copy of slides attached to the signed Minutes - which provided a summary of the findings and recommendations made following a survey looking at public experiences of Health Care, Social Care and Well-being services during the Covid-19 pandemic up to 31 May.

Rachel Robinson, the Director of Public Health for Shropshire thanked the Chief Officer, Healthwatch for her really useful presentation and recognised the need for clear information and guidelines which was something that they had continued to try and support as the guidelines had changed throughout the pandemic. It continued to be a challenge but was absolutely crucial to the work being done. She recognised the work ongoing on this and with the communications teams to ensure that the messages got out.

The Chief Officer Healthwatch Shropshire commented that the information given by employers was found to be the most helpful, and she wondered whether the system was sharing the information with employers so that it could be added to their websites and in their communications with staff. Rachel thanked her for the

feedback which was really helpful and she confirmed that they were working really closely with businesses. The specific point about whether employers were sharing that through their intranet or through staff emails would be really useful and this would be followed up. The Director of Public Health commented that the challenge had been that the government guidance had changed quite quickly but she explained that the Frequently Asked Questions were really useful on both the local and national sites.

Ros Preen, the Director of Finance, Shropshire Community Health Trust commented on how useful feedback from this kind of survey was for health care providers and that she would be sharing internally the outcomes from the report and considering the recommendations when restoring services.

The STP Programme Manager and Communities Lead explained that draft guidance in relation to shielding had been received and she suggested that collaborative working on this with Healthwatch Shropshire would be really helpful especially around clear messaging for the public. She also drew attention to the on-line platform for people aged 16+ who were suffering with their mental health. This provided a useful tool to ensure that people were not left struggling. She also touched on investment in bereavement counselling services.

The Chief Officer, Healthwatch Shropshire informed the Board that the full report including all comments received was available on their website. She reported that Healthwatch Shropshire had aligned their priorities to those of the STP and she requested that if any organisation within the system wished them to undertake a particular piece of work to let her know and she would take it to the Board for consideration.

RESOLVED: To note the contents of the Health Care, Social Care and Wellbeing services during the Covid-19 pandemic – Healthwatch survey responses.

87 Report on the current situation re: food poverty

Emily Fay, co-ordinator of the Shropshire Food Poverty Alliance gave a presentation on food poverty – copy of slides attached to signed Minutes, which covered the following areas:

- Food Poverty in Shropshire: Covid-19
- Food response in Shropshire during covid-19
- Going forwards: increased need due to covid-19
- Shropshire Food Poverty Alliance

She reported that it had been a very busy six months and that so much had changed and so many volunteers were now involved in supporting people. She gave an overview of what had been happening around the county with foodbanks, and community projects around Shropshire. She explained that before covid, their main concern was around people not being able to afford food. However the national lockdown had created lots of issues around people accessing food, particularly those who were vulnerable or were shielding. She discussed what had been done to assist

people to access food. The key learning from all of this was the role that local organisations played in both identifying need and creating avenues of support.

Going forward it was really clear that there was going to be an increase in hardship particular over the winter but probably into the longer term as well. There were a number of key areas of concern including the furlough scheme coming to an end, support for the self-employed along with concerns around housing and debt. All of these issues would have a huge impact on people's health and wellbeing. It was therefore important that people were aware of the support that was available and that they be encouraged to come forward for help.

The Shropshire Food Poverty Alliance have been working throughout the pandemic and were really grateful for the financial support received from Shropshire Council and for the continuing support going forward. They were still working to the Food Poverty Action Plan which was now more important than ever. The Board were informed that the main focus of the Shropshire Food Poverty Alliance had been the Relaunch of the Shropshire Larder website and associated media. So they were really focused on signposting people to the support that was available.

Laura Fisher, Housing Services Manager at Shropshire Council wished to thank the foodbanks and food poverty alliance for their work and help during lockdown and she was confident that this partnership work would continue. She also drew attention to the work of the Hardship Forum.

A brief discussion took place in relation to the 20% contribution that all but the most vulnerable have to pay towards their Council Tax.

RESOLVED: To note the contents of the presentation.

88 Safeguarding and Community Protection

Sarah Hollinshead-Bland, the Statutory Safeguarding Business Partner, Shropshire Council gave a presentation – copy attached to the signed Minutes – which covered the following areas:

- Shropshire Safeguarding Community Partnership our previous structure
- Our new structure
- How we developed our priorities
- How the partnership is supported
- Achievements so far
- How do we work more closely?

The Statutory Safeguarding Business Partner updated the Board in relation to where they were with their new governance structure for Shropshire Safeguarding Community Partnership. Looking at the new structure (slide 3) the networks at the bottom of the triangle were a very important foundation to the partnership. The dark blue boxes set out their agreed strategic priorities whilst above these sat the System Groups (Business as usual groups). These groups were created by combining case review groups and they were in the process of establishing joint learning and

development groups along with an assurance and performance group. Each Chair of these groups would be attending the Executive Group.

The Statutory Safeguarding Business Partner informed the Board that the Shropshire Safeguarding Community Partnership had met on 13 February 2020 in order to develop their strategy and priorities for the next three years and she explained the process that was undertaken.

The Statutory Safeguarding Business Partner explained that the partnership was supported by an Independent Chair and a business team. She then drew attention to some of the things that had already been achieved this year, including responding to the covid crisis.

The Statutory Safeguarding Business Partner posed some questions to the Board, including how they could work more closely with the Board and what would the Board be looking for from the Shropshire Safeguarding Community Partnership.

The Chairman thanked the Statutory Safeguarding Business Partner for her very informative presentation and suggested that the CCG Board would be very interested to hear more directly from her and that he would ask someone from the CCG to get in touch to arrange this.

RESOLVED: to note the contents of the presentation.

89 Immunisations and health screening update

Rachel Robinson, the Director of Public Health for Shropshire gave a presentation – copy attached to the signed Minutes – which covered the following areas:

- Screening and Immunisations
- Restoration of services
- Current status
- Covid-19 and Impact on Immunisation uptake
- Government Targets for flu vaccine uptake for 2020/21
- Work in progress

She explained that this update was part of a report that came annually but she wished to update the Board in relation to screening, immunisation and the restoration of services following the covid-19 pandemic. She reported that the restoration of services had begun in June and July, starting with those appointments that had been cancelled before moving on to new invitations. Looking at the current status for the restoration of services, the Director of Public Health drew attention to the challenges currently being faced due to social distancing restrictions, the additional time taken for each appointment due to the use of PPE, and the reduction in the workforce due to shielding and redeployment etc.

The Director of Public Health informed the Board of the impact of Covid-19 on the uptake of immunisations, in particular the MMR vaccine and she would bring a further update on this to the next meeting. She then drew attention to the importance

Minutes of the Health and Wellbeing Board held on 10 September 2020

of the flu vaccination programme, especially in light of the covid pandemic, which was being extended to include more eligible groups.

RESOLVED: To note the contents of the presentation.

90	Chairman's Updates	
	None.	
91	АОВ	
	None.	
<trailer_section></trailer_section>		
Sian	ned	(Chairman)
		(Chairman)
Date	9:	